VI.

VII.

VIII.

XI.

XIl.

RESEARCH PARK

AT FLORIDA ATLANTIC
UNIVERSITY"

Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority

3651 FAU Boulevard, Suite 400, Boca Raton, FL 33431
December 9th, 2015 at 8 AM

AGENDA
Call to order Roll call
Bruce Rosetto Chairman
Bob Parks Vice Chairman
Michael Daszkal Treasurer
Bob Swindell Member
Lonnie Maier Member
Daniel Flynn Member
Susan Whelchel Member

Additions, deletions, substitutions to the agenda

Review of the minutes of the October 14", 2015 meeting

Chairman’s report

Treasurer’s report

General Counsel’s report
University report

Presentation of 2014-2015 audited financial statements

Members’ comments and reports
President’s report
Old business

President & CEO 2014-2015 performance review

New business

Discussion of meetings schedule

Review of draft non-discrimination policy

Page 1 of 2



XII.  Adjourn

Upcoming meeting dates:

Wednesday February 10, 2016
Wednesday April 13, 2016
Wednesday June 8, 2016

Wednesday August 10, 2016

The Authority reserves the right to change these dates at its discretion and to add new
dates as needed, subject to the requirements of applicable law.

All meetings at 8 AM unless otherwise noted
Members of the public wishing to comment on issues before the Authority may fill in a
Comment Card and must submit it to the Chairman before the item is taken up by the
Authority. Each member of the public may speak for 3 minutes on his/her stated
agenda item.
FLORIDA ATLANTIC RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

PUBLIC COMMENT REQUEST CARD

Name Email Agenda Summary of Comment
ltem #

Speaker must wait until the Chairman calls upon him/her to make his/her comment.
Time is limited to 3 minutes, subject to modification by the Board, in order that the
meeting run efficiently.

Page 2 of 2




RESEARCH PARK

AT FLORIDA ATLANTIC
UNIVERSITY"

FLORIDA ATLANTIC RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
3651 FAU Blvd. Suite 400, Boca Raton, FL 33431
October 14", 2015 at 8 AM
Meeting Minutes

Members present

Bob Parks Vice-Chair

Michael Daszkal = Treasurer (departed at 9 am)
Bob Swindell Member (arrived at 8.20 am)
Lonnie Maier Member

Daniel Flynn Member (departed at 9.45 am)

Susan Whelchel Member

Members absent
Bruce Rosetto Chair

Staff present: Andrew Duffell, President & CEO
Freddy Perera, General Counsel
Christine Burres, Director of Operations

Others Present

Chip LaMarca — Broward County Commissioner, Adam Hasner — People’s Trust
Insurance Company, Doug Nicholson — People’s Trust Insurance Company, Juan
Cocuy — Templeton & Company, Heather Anstaett — Templeton & Company, William
Benson — Keefe McCullough, Israel Gomez — Keefe McCullough

Call to Order
Meeting called to order by Vice Chairman Parks at 8.02 AM.

Roll Call

President Duffell performed roll call; 5 members present and 2 members absent. Mr.
Duffell informed the Vice-Chairman that a quorum was present. Mr. Swindell arrived
after the roll had been called.

Page 1 of 8



Additions, deletions, substitutions to the agenda

A motion to reorder the agenda to move Item Xll to Item IV was made by Ms.
Whelchel and seconded by Ms. Maier. The motion passed 5-0, with two members
absent.

New Business
ltem IV.i. Review of funding agreement with Palm Beach County.

Mr. Duffell presented the negotiated agreement with Palm Beach County for the latter to
invest $50,000 annually into the Authority’s economic development initiatives, with a
focus on the Technology Business Incubator (TBI) and recommended approval.

RESOLUTION OF THE FLORIDA ATLANTIC RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY APPROVING AGREEMENT WITH PALM BEACH COUNTY GOVERNING
COUNTY’S ANNUAL CONTRIBUTION TO THE AUTHORITY FOR ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

A motion to approve Resolution 15-14 was made by Ms. Maier and seconded by Mr.
Daszkal. The motion passed 5-0, with two members absent.

ltem IV.ii. Review of final proposals for consultant services regarding Economic
Development Administration grant with Palm Beach County as co-applicant.

Mr. Duffell presented the final proposal from the master consultant and recommended
approval of the agreement as previously reviewed.

A motion to approve the previously reviewed agreement and proposal as presented
was made by Mr. Daszkal and seconded by Ms. Maier. The motion passed 5-0, with
two members absent.

ltem IV.iii. President & CEO performance review

The Authority members agreed to defer discussion of the review of the performance of the
president & CEO to the December meeting. The consensus was that each Member should
take the time to fill in the review form and discuss it at the next meeting; Mr. Duffell will also
solicit input and feedback from other stakeholders.

ltem IV.iv. Finance Committee report

Presentations were made by the two finalist respondents to the Request for Proposals for
auditing services: Keefe McCullough and Templeton & Company. Authority members
commented that both firms had strong reputations but felt that Keefe McCullough would be a
better fit for the Authority.

Page 2 of 8



A motion to direct the President & CEO to negotiate pricing with Keefe McCullough
and when satisfied, to execute the previously agreed to contract language was made
by Ms. Maier and seconded by Ms. Whelchel. The motion passed 6-0, with one
member absent.

Mr. Duffell presented the proposed 2015-2016 budget as reviewed by the Finance
Committee. The committee recommends that FARDA approve the budget as presented.
Mr. Duffell informed the Authority that:

Incubator income projected assuming 85% occupancy instead of 80%
Incubator expenses lower in 2015-16 as Suite 210 no longer maintained
Projected TBI shortfall $107,099 vs. $172,759 in 2014-15
No income or expense re NWA in 2015-16 by agreement
New income and expense re EDA grant
New income from Boca Raton & PBC, and related expense
Salaries expense

* President & CEO + 8%, performance bonus $20,000

« Director of Operations + 8%, performance bonus $10,000

» Program Manager created at $42,500
» Funds for consulting work for new facilities development
«  Community support:

+ $2.5k College of Science

$2.5k College of Engineering
$5k College of Business
$5k YEA!
$5k Florida Institute

RESOLUTION OF THE FLORIDA ATLANTIC RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY APPROVING BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR
2015-2016; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

A motion to approve Resolution 15-5, the 2015-2016 budget as presented was made
by Mr. Swindell and seconded by Ms. Whelchel. The motion passed 5-0, with two
members absent.

Mr. Duffell presented the budget, finance and purchasing policy reviewed and recommended
by the Finance Committee and recommended its approval.

RESOLUTION OF THE FLORIDA ATLANTIC RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY APPROVING BUDGET, PURCHASING AND
FINANCE POLICY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Page 3 of 8



A motion to approve Resolution 15-16 was made by Ms. Maier and seconded by Ms.
Whelchel. The motion passed 5-0, with two members absent.

Item IV. v. Review of expiring policies

Mr. Duffell presented policies that had expired on September 30, 2015. The policies
presented are largely the same as the previous policies, making only minor modifications to
all with the exception of the signage policy. The signage policy is recommended for
modification to provide more clarity and uniformity of signage throughout the Research Park.

RESOLUTION OF THE FLORIDA ATLANTIC RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY IMPLEMENTING A MEETING PROTOCOL
POLICY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

RESOLUTION OF THE FLORIDA ATLANTIC RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY APPROVING PERSONNEL POLICY;
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

RESOLUTION OF THE FLORIDA ATLANTIC RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY APPROVING BACKGROUND
INVESTIGATIONS POLICY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

RESOLUTION OF THE FLORIDA ATLANTIC RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY APPROVING ANTI-HARASSMENT POLICY;
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

RESOLUTION OF THE FLORIDA ATLANTIC RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY IMPLEMENTING A REVISED BUILDING SIGN
SPECIFICATIONS POLICY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

RESOLUTION OF THE FLORIDA ATLANTIC RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY APPROVING WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY;
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

A motion to approve Resolutions 15-17 Meeting Protocol Policy, 15-18 Personnel
Policy, 15-19 Background Investigations Policy, 15-20 Harassment Policy, 15-21 Sign
Policy and 15-22 Whistleblower Policy was made by Ms. Whelchel and seconded by
Dr. Flynn. The motion passed 5-0, with two members absent.

Page 4 of 8



Item IV. vi. Review of People’s Trust Insurance Company development plans

Mr. Duffell informed the Authority that People’s Trust has informed him that it intends to
construct new buildings on its leased property in Deerfield Beach: an office building and a
parking structure. The land lease with People’s Trust requires that it secure Authority
approval of its revised site plan, and consent to submit applications for permits and other
approvals.

Ms. Whelchel asked if People’s Trust would have to go through normal reviews and
applications with the City of Deerfield Beach and other regulatory agencies, and Mr. Duffell
assured her it would.

Mr. Duffell informed the Authority that Mr. Perera and his colleague John Fox Snider at
Stearns Weaver had reviewed the lease and recommended that People’s Trust provide the
Authority with indemnification, which it has done.

RESOLUTION OF THE FLORIDA ATLANTIC RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING PEOPLE’S TRUST
INSURANCE COMPANY TO SUBMIT APPLICATIONS FOR PERMITS AND
OTHER APPROVALS NEEDED; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

A motion to approve Resolution 15-23 was made by Mr. Swindell and seconded by Ms.
Maier. The motion passed 5-0, with two members absent.

Special Presentation by Broward County

Broward County Commissioner presented a proclamation from the Broward County
Commission to the Authority, recognizing its 30" anniversary and contribution to the county’s
economy. October 14", 2015 is recognized as Florida Atlantic Research and Development
Authority appreciation day in Broward County.

Approval of the minutes

Vice Chairman Parks asked if the Members had the opportunity to review the minutes
from the September 14" special meeting. There being no additions or changes to the
minutes, he asked for a motion to approve the minutes as presented.

A motion to approve the minutes of the June 10, 2015 meeting was made by Ms.
Maier, and seconded by Ms. Whelchel. The motion passed 5-0, with 2 members
absent.

Chairman’s Report
None.

Page 5 of 8



Treasurer’s Report

Mr. Daskzal reviewed the August and September 2015 financial statements and
reported that the Authority ended the fiscal year in a strong financial position,
congratulating Mr. Duffell and his staff for carefully managing the budget.

A motion to approve the Treasurer’s report was made by Ms. Whelchel, and
seconded by Ms. Maier. The motion passed 5-0, with 2 members absent.

General Counsel’'s Report

Counsel Perera informed the board that there were no current legal threats or
exposures.

University Report

Dr. Flynn reported that FAU is engaged in the process of developing plans for its Boca
Raton and Jupiter campuses and envisions a partnership with the Authority for both.
Different industries are and will be attracted to the different parts of South Florida as
each develops its own strengths. Boca Raton is envisioned as a patient-centric campus
and the Research Park’s current tenants fit well into that industry; the Jupiter campus is
envisioned to be more focused on biomedicine and the development of novel
discoveries.

President’s Report

Mr. Duffell sent his report to the Authority members on October 13" in the interests of
time during the meeting. The report is included here:

Strateqic initiatives

City of Boca Raton approved and executed an agreement to invest $50,000 annually
into the Authority’s economic development initiatives. Pursuant to the agreement, for
2014-2015 50% of funds have already been deposited in the restricted Research Park
Catalyst Fund account. Payment of the 2015-16 funds is expected in the first fiscal
quarter of 2015-2016.

Palm Beach County approved its 2015-2016 budget which includes an annual
investment of $50,000 into the Authority’s economic development initiatives. The
Authority will consider the agreement at its October 14» meeting and the Board of County
Commissioners will do so at one of its November meetings.

The Authority will consider an agreement to direct consultants to begin analysis of sites
in northern Palm Beach County for a potential research park campus in the final quarter
of 2015.

Meetings have been arranged with Broward County to discuss new initiatives for the
county’s economic development, provisionally with a focus on international technology
company attraction. | would like to have the Authority apply for designation from the
National Business Incubation Association (NBIA) as a soft landings center specifically for
international companies.

Page 6 of 8



Discussions have taken place between staff and Florida Atlantic University and the
Authority’s land sub-tenant to advance the prospect of new building development in
Boca Raton.

Discussions have taken place between staff, Deerfield Beach and third parties to
advance the prospect of new building development on the remaining four acres at the
corner of SW 10~ Street and FAU Research Park Boulevard in Deerfield Beach.
Discussions have taken place between staff and consultants to the Broward MPO to
discuss possible improvements to the SW 10~ Street / Sawgrass Expressway corridor.

Operational activities

The 30+ anniversary celebration was held on October 2~
e 175 people attended the event
e Inaugural awards were given to:
Dr. Joseph Ouslander of FAU — Distinguished Researcher
Mr. Simon Kay of ATG — Distinguished Entrepreneur
Mr. A. E. “Bud” Osborne — Distinguished Leader
Florida Institute for the Commercialization of Public Research —
Distinguished Organization

e 20 corporate sponsors supported the event financially.

e South Florida Business Journal published a special insert on October 2w
celebrating the anniversary. The insert was included in the 10,000
subscriptions that the Journal mails out, and the Authority has approx. 600
to use as a marketing piece.

e VIPs in attendance: Florida CFO Jeff Atwater, Palm Beach County
Commissioner Steven Abrams and Deerfield Beach Commissioner
Richard Rosenzweig, among others.

Jonathan Grabis’ last day with the Authority was on October 9»; he now works for
the New World Angels, still a good partner for the Authority.

Dr. Bob Parks, Vice Chair was re-appointed to the Authority by the Broward
County Commission.

The Authority ended its fiscal year with $238,699 cash on hand as compared to
$157,000 at the end of FY 2013-2014.

The TBI remains at 100% occupancy.

The Research Park is at approximately 90% occupancy.

Old business
No old business outstanding.

Adjournment
There being no other business before the Authority, the Vice Chairman asked for a

motion to adjourn.

Page 7 of 8



A motion to adjourn the meeting of the Florida Atlantic Research and

Development Authority was made by Ms. Maier and seconded by Ms. Wheilchel.
The motion passed, with two members absent.

Respectfully presented to the Authority for review and approval on December 2, 2015.

Reviewed and approved by the Authority by vote on December 9, 2015.

Signed:

Andrew Duffell, Secretary

Page 8 of 8



WD l2o (15~

8:41 AM FARDA
11123115 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basls As of October 31, 2015
R Oct 31,15
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
BankUnited - GAP Fund 98,413.93 M
BankUnited - Money Market 79,053.94
BankUnited - Operating 71,012.94 L1
Total Checking/Savings 248,480.81
Accounts Recelvable
Accounts Recelvable 41,662.86
Total Accounts Receivable 41,662.86
Other Current Assets
Current Assets
Contr of Lease Rental - CP
Boca Raton RP {(1,532.81)
Deerfleid Beach RP (182.91)
Total Contr of Lease Rental - CP (1,715.72)
Total Current Assets (1,715.72)
Prepaid Expenses
Payroll Service 100,000.00
Prepald Insurance 1,685.83
Prepald Misc 7,562.50
Prepald Rent 3,811.00
Total Prepald Expenses 113,059.33
Total Other Current Assets 111,343.61
Total Current Assets 401,487.28
Fixed Assets
Deferred Lease Costs
Accumulated Amortization (4,182.59)
Deferred Lease Costs - Other 30,155.75
Total Deferred Lease Costs 25,973.18
Property & Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation (74,754.27)
Computers & Office Equipment 33,389.72
Leasehold Improvements 67,5696.89
Park Signs 17,172.51
Total Property & Equipment L 43,404.85
Total Fixed Assets 69,378.01
Other Assets
Allowance for Bad Debt (1,402.45)
Contribution of Lease Rental
Boca Raton Research Park 7.619,409.00
Deerfleld Beach Research Park 1,398,288.00
Total Contribution of Lease Rental 9,017,697.00
Total Other Assets &016,294.55
TOTAL ASSETS 9,487,159.84
LIABILITIES & EQUITY -
Llabilities
Current Liabilitles
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable 84,436.97
Total Accounts Payable 84,436.97

e
\e

Page 1



8:41 AM FARDA

1123115 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of October 31, 2015
Oct 31,15
Other Current Liabilitles
Compensated Absence Liabllity 1,121.76
Def Cont of Lease Rental - CP
Boca Raton Res Park (1,532.81)
Drfd Bch Research Park (182.91)
Total Def Cont of Lease Rental - CP (1,715.72)
Health Savings
Flexible Spending (885.78)
Unreimb Medical (665.17)
Total Health Savings (1,550.95)
Rent Collected in Advance 63,938.42
Sales Tax Payable 1,251.54
Total Other Current Liabilities 63,045.05
Total Current Liabliiities 147,482.02
Long Term Liabilitles
Dfrd Cont of Lease Rental
Boca Raton Research Park 7,619,409.00
Deerfleld Beach Research Park 1,398,288.00
Total Dfrd Cont of Lease Rental 9,017,697.00
Rent Deposits Payable 130,245.74
Total Long Term Liabilities . 9,147,942.74
Total Liabllities 9,295,424.76
Equity
Funds Invested In Cap Assets 106,140.00
Retained Earnings 74,482.99
Net Income 11,112.09
Total Equity ) 191,735.08
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 9,487,159.84

Page 2



\o

_ . Omcomxm mﬂ_uwvf_ms_
00022 052 L 000'SE 0S2'S 0521 000°GE 0S.'S 9wooU| BuRAJEW [EI0L
00S°Z 0052 S1SEJp0d
000 Z 0 0SCo¢ DOS ¥ 0 0S¢ 9¢ 00S ¥ —____sublg Jeuueg
000G 0SC L 0Sc L DSC L 0521 0SC1 [ TAl SIBUS 1507 BURS}EN]
1VITe e V1] U:_uwv_.-mi
G28°C G28¢ 0 9WO0JU] 9JIAI9S [EJ0L
618°¢C GI8'C 0 S[EbUY PHOM MaN]
BWIoJU]} 9JIAIDG
{660'201) (526 8) {¢99'sl) {0P0°6) {526'8) (€99°81) 0v0°6) —___Jojeqnou] - SWOIU[ 9N
| S8Y'99¢ 0S5 0E 856 67 DP9 LS 0vS0€ G6 6 or9'LE —__osuadxd J01eqnouf [ej01
0006 0S/ VEC L 009 0SZ yET | 009 OLc NS pue g0 SHNg - [eUojUer
005V G/E EEC 0v9c GIE €E€C ov9¢e sJiedoy/oouBuduiBy AjljioeS
000'Y €EE 743 00€ 333 GZE 00€ Sopes5dN/aouBUSUBIN L
0 0 012 9Ung - siedoy OV
00S°€ Z6¢ 0 GGl Z6¢ 0 GGl 00% SUNS - siieday OY
956 € 956 € liegepquie] |3
000G Iy 605 L 0 LY 60S'L 0 S FEEr EREE
€0C €0C | 0l 9UNg - 1d
96¢ 8¢ 8GEC Sob'e g9L¢ 8GE¢C Gor'e 89l¢ Q0P ONNS - 1dd
909°EL 909 €l {3990 0} pled) Jual - 0j.¢ aIns
68L°CLE 91092 12¥'Se 11752 91092 IZr'Se 111'SC (399D 03 ped) Judl - 0% NS
wmcmnxm J03eqnouj
[98€65¢ 919'12 S62C LE 009'2¢ 919'12 G6C LE 00922 3II0JU| J03eqnou] [ej0L
LOLEL JOLEL 0 JUSI - 0L¢ oHnsS
O8E 65¢C 919'1¢ YES'ZL 009¢C oig ¢ YEG L 009°2¢ U] Ul popnoul S1 J9UJSjUl) USJ - 00V SINS
3WoIU| Jojeqniuj
[621°505 zeS vy SLL LY 265 ¢V ZeS Y SIL Y 265°¢V pueq - awodou| 19N
00Z 62 0 109'L 009'L 0 109°L zm 1 SSuadXg PuE 1 [830L
ooo.oﬁ 0 0 0 [¢ 0 sjuawssinquiidl ses) Asulony
00C 61 0091 1091 009'F 0091 L09'L 85 (Se3) ASWIONE [ENUUE %08) So0) ASUIORY
asuadx3 pue
61£ VES 285 Vv [2YXA% 61 vV ZeS vy VK43 261 vP SlI0oU| pue | |30
00001 €e8 0 0001 £E8 0 000°1 S99 ASUIONY
VEC £C 9g6'1L 0358’1 15871 oE6'L 968l 7681 SS10€ 6/ | - PUE] Vvad
ZSr el AN} 90} G/0'L 1CL'l 901 G0 SaI0E ¢g | - PUB] Yvag
o169 099'G 0/5'S DIS'G 099'G 0/5°S 07/G'S K375d05d [BUORIPPY - PUE | PloRIaag
29.°8S 168% 96LY 0.8V 168F 96L v 087 1ii 9Seud - pue pleuideg £
1990V 88E'€ 0CE € 0/E€ 88E'S 0CEE 0/€E 3seld - pue] pjlewsag 43
2.6°/S 86 00, % 121Y 6LV 00L ¥ LY 3Seld - PUE] pjlepasQ T
OEEEl Ly 980'L 00L'L LLLL 080} 00L'L DOA - PUE] €904 ot
YA v S 908G £88'G re'S 908°S 88 G Il 9seld - pue | eog 6
6EL'8L GYe VL YOS VL 969 VL SYevL $0S ¥1 96971 3Seyd - pue eoog 8
awiodu] pue L
9
[ jo0png 3obpig [enioy TendY | | 19bpng | | IEnoV [enioy 3
9102 9102 V102 G102 S10C ¥1.0¢ 5102 v
alA aiA aiA 190 90 0 Kjioyny JusidOPAS(Q B YIJeasay 3
OjUeRY EpHO[d 3
A X M IA n S - | o] d (o] N W J a|v




000°0S 0 0 0 0 0 0 PENUODH/BURNSUC)H 56
0087V [0]0) 4 [0,9)4 00v [0:0)4 [010)4 [40) 4 eba] 86
000 8} 00S 00S 009 005 00S 00S bununoddy 16
00241 G/6 66.L £v8 G/6 661 ev8 {Amgesiq "Auligert) soueansu 96
000 0E ¢ 0 1] 0 0 0 SAIJUS0U|/Shuog 82A0|aW3 56
005'€ Z6¢c D oce'L 262 0 0ce L ucneonp3/buluiel] aaAojdw v6
8LZ €9 89¢C'G EEL € SIS € 892G EELE GIGE Sjyauag aakojdwi] €6
£61°25¢C glLo’Le DL1'6L Zcl '8l olo’le OLL 6l el 8l (soxe; sopnjoul) {jjoJAed) Alejeg saAojduiy 26
astodxg jeuonesadp| [16
Enm 9¢9°6¢ 9Ly’ LS 668 6€ 9£96¢ 9lv LS 6568 6€ 3WodU| J3N [BJ0L1 |06
G89°129 2022¢ 5SS V5 LLO'2E L02'2E 6SS'PS 11028 9suadx3 |ejol}ss
[ SSP'ISL'L Wwe'LL SL6'bLE 0L6 9L a2 A3 SL6 LY 016 9L Jwoduj jejoliss
2S¢ DE [0)4 Zs (0] o¥ Zs IR
000'€ 0se 1S 0 052 \S 0 awiodU] "OSIN| |98
000'SY 0 0 0 0 0 0 Xe], - aWwodu| JoN|s8
000'SS 0 0 0 ) 0 0 asuadxg uopnauoD [edidiuniy jelol] {8
000'SY 0 0 0 0 0 0 O} PoIWILIOD Spun 8
0000l 0 0 0 0 0 0 Ssusdxo pojejel welbosd ISy 78
3sSuadxg uonnNqLIuOY) [edDIUNR[ [18
000°00}) 9LV 0 2991 Y 8l'¥y 0 99l ¥ 3wioou] uonnquIuo) [edpiungy jejol]| [os
000°0S 291% 0 Py 91’ 0 991 ¥ UONINgU}U0D UOJEY B309 JO AUID 6L
000°0S 0 0 0 0 0 0 {PaULIjUOS Jou) UORNqUIUOT Aunod yoeag Wied BL
2Woouj uoRnqujuo) jediunpy| |«
€EeE €E 0 0 1 0 0 0 JUEls) - sWwoou] JoN| oL
00006 D 0 0 0 0 0 dsuadxg jJuelo) [ejoL| |s.
00006 0 0 0 0 0 0 porea] Juedb oS i
osuddxg Jueln)| [eL
€ee e 0 0 0 0 0 0 _ auwIoou] JuUBlS) 101 [z
geeeel 0 0 0 0 0 0 {v(3) UOREqSIUIWPY Jusludojpasq diwouooy 1L
awIooU) Jue9| |oL
000'SY 0 0 0 0 0 0 JUSAZ - 9WODU] JION| 69
000°0¥ 0 0 0 0 D 0 9SuadXg JUOA [eJOL] (89
0000V 0 0 0 0 0 0 BuLa)ed pue SnudA] Iz
asuadxg JuaA3| (99
000°58 0 0 0S1 0 0 0SL swoou] JuaAg [&30L| |S9
00058 0 0 051 0 0 0S5l SAOUSHIOM pUE SjUSAS DUDPOMSN] va
awiodu| JuaAd| [e9
0006 0 0 0 0 [i 0 diySIiosuods - owoou] I9N| 29
000°32 0 0 0 0 0 0 asuadxg diysiosuodg [e101] |19
000 0¢ PUB-uUl LSYOWOD 09
) 0 Sy [euoljouiold 65
o0ot 0 . 2 > g @suadxg diysiosuodsg| [8s
000°0€ 0 0 0 0 0 0 Bwoou) dijstosuods [ejoL| |45
000°0¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0 wieIbold Jouped Josuodg| 9s
awoou] diysiosuodsg| ™ |ss
0002 {(Z1¥) 000Z¢ 6261 LIy D'ZE 5.6 | bunRaJep - dWodU] I3N| vs
00002 1991 000°€ 121 199} 000¢ IS osuadx3 bunaqJe|Nl [BJOL| | €S
0002 191 0 1.2 C 191 )] L/2C Sublg Jauueg es
000’81 0051 000°¢ 00S'L 005’1 000°€ 00S’L Iquy 1s
A M A n n S ¥ ) 0 N W 5 g|v




168'L €969 260'1LE SLLLL C60'LE CLL L awodu] JONJLTT
¥95°SSL L 082'S9 £88°08 16LG9 £88°08 16L°S9 asuadxg [ej0 L [o11
6.8°EES €20'€S PZE9C 981'8¢ pZE 9C 98.'8¢ asuadxg jeuonesadQ [ejol] fstr
goG € 16¢ pEE 18T pES 18¢ (D10 sefjjeuadpsesoll yueq [0JAed) S99 adIAIeS 33
[4 0 0 0 0 0 :o_um_om‘_amm ETT
000'C /91 ((X3) 0 (%3] 0 sosuadx3 OSI 413
000°SZ 0 0 0 0 0 SaAIoS9Y pajoUIsaY Tt
00 u, 02 0 0 0 0 0 toan:w QEm..Om:oaw\? IUNWIoD l0TT
D00'S 11y 0 162 A% 0 162 SISGOM [eot
0002 oL D6¢C 692 791 06¢ 69¢ ("Guiia1 jj@0 'S|[Ed JUod aul| Snq) SuUoyds|a | [sot
D00’ L £8 0 0 €9 0 1) Buijtiid L0T
D0E Sc 0 0 14 0 0 Sbejsogd 50T
005'S 8GP 0 6211 85y 0 6EL1L Wswdinby/sonddnsg SOt
005 42 0 D v 0 0 suonduosgns/suonediignd 1
000 LL 216 06S 062 LL6 06S 062 sdiysiaquisiN/seng 0T
000°E 0S¢ 0 0 0S¢ 0 s S[EO|N sseuisng ot
0099 066 DSS 0SS 055 085 056 asuadxg 9[IqowoNy 01
000G 0SZ L 6¥9 0 0SC | 6¥9 0 SIeulSS/SbuljssN/|sAel L 00T
A M A n S 0 d 0 7] 2




Florida Atlantic Research and
Development Authority
Boca Raton, Florida

Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority

Table of Contents

Independent Auditor’s Report

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Not Covered

by Independent Auditor’s Report)

Basic Financial Statements

Statements of Net Position - Proprietary Fund

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Fund
Statements of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Other Reports of Independent Auditors

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor’s Report to Authority Management

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes

1-2

3-7

10

11-19

20-21

22-23

24



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Boca Raton, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of Florida
Atlantic Research and Development Authority (the “Authority”) as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the Authority, as of September 30, 2015,
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Prior Period Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Authority as of September 30, 2014, were audited by other auditors
whose report dated June 10, 2015, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements.

As part of our audit of the 2015 financial statements, we also audited adjustments described in Note
14 that were applied to restate the 2014 financial statements. In our opinion, such adjustments are
appropriate and have been properly applied. We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any
procedures to the 2014 financial statements of the Authority other than with respect to the
adjustments and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the
2014 financial statements as a whole.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 7 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated (DATE), on
our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

KEEFE McCULLOUGH

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
(DATE)



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Management's Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Our discussion and analysis of Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority’s (the
“Authority”) financial performance provides an overview of the Authority’s financial activities
for the years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014. Please read it in conjunction with the
Authority’s financial statements, which immediately follow this discussion.

Financial Highlights

The following are the highlights of financial activity for the year ended September 30, 2015 and
2014:

e The Authority’s total assets exceeded its liabilities at September 30, 2015 and 2014 by
$ 175,578 and $ 92,213, respectively.

e The Authority’s total revenues as of September 30, 2015 and 2014 were $ 1,072,080 and
$ 908,310, respectively; a majority of these operating revenues are derived from various
rental agreements. The remaining revenues consisted of grants, contributions and other
miscellaneous revenue. The Authority’s total expenses as of September 30, 2015 and
2014 were $ 988,715 and $ 1,081,961, respectively.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority's basic
financial statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of two components: 1)
business-type financial statements and 2) notes to the financial statements.

Basic Financial Statements: The basic financial statements, which consist of the statement of
net position and the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and
statement of cash flows, and are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
Authority’s finances, in a manner similar to a private business sector.

The statement of net position presents information on all the Authority’s assets, and liabilities
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Authority is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents information showing
how the Authority’s net position changed during the year. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statement: The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.

Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position over time, may serve as a useful indicator of financial position.

The following table presents a comparative analysis of the the condensed statement of net
position:



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Management's Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority

Net Position
2015 2014

Assets:
Current and other assets S 292,106 S 189,719
Capital assets, net 43,286 62,631

Total assets 335,392 252,350
Liabilities:
Current and other liabilities 159,814 160,137

Total liabilities 159,814 160,137
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 43,286 62,631
Restricted 20,898 -
Unrestricted 111,394 29,582

Total net position S 175,578  § 92,213

The following table presents comparative information of the condensed statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position:

Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Changes in Net Position

2015 2014
Revenues:
Operating S 1,071,417 S 907,819
Non-operating 663 491
Total revenues 1,072,080 908,310
Expenses:
Operating 405,851 471,111
General and administrative 295,736 322,024
Program 287,128 288,826
Total expenses 988,715 1,081,961
Changes in net position 83,365 (173,651)
Net position,
beginning of year, (as restated) 92,213 265,864
Net position, end of year S 175,578 ¢ 92,213

To better illustrate the Authority’s activity for fiscal year 2015 and 2014, the below charts have
been provided:



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Management's Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Operating Revenues:

® Boca Park Land
Revenue

B Deerfield Park Land
Revenue

W Technology Business
Incubator

W Other

Total 2015 Operating Revenues $ 1,071,417 \

B Boca Park Land
Revenue

B Deerfield Park Land
Revenue

W Technology Business
Incubator

W Other

Total 2014 Operating Revenues $ 907,819

Revenues increased as a result of special events which were sponsored as well an increase in
contributions.



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Management's Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Expenses:

Total 2015 Expenses: $ 988,715

M Operating Expenses

W General Administrative
Expenses

M Program Expenses

B Operating Expenses

W General Administrative
Expenses

= Program Expenses

Total 2014 Expenses: $ 1,081,961




Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Management's Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2015 and 2014

The overall decrease was mostly due to the Technology Business Incubator leasing less space than
in the prior year. The decrease in general and administrative expense was due to less professional
fees partially due to legal reimbursements.

Capital Assets

As of September 30, 2015, the Authority had an investment of capital assets of $43,286. This
amount is net of accumulated depreciation of $ 74,874. This amount represents a net decrease of
$ 19,345 or 31%.

As of September 30, 2014, the Authority had an investment of capital assets of $62,631. This
amount is net of accumulated depreciation of $ 55,529.

Economic Factors

There are currently no known facts expected to affect the financial position or results of operations
of the Authority.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Florida Atlantic Research and
Development Authority’s finances for all those with an interest. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to
Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority, 3651 FAU Boulevard, Suite 400, Boca Raton,
FL 33431.



BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Statements of Net Position - Proprietary Fund
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Assets:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Rent and other tenant receivables
Prepaid expenses and other

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Liabilities:

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Tenant deposits
Unearned revenue

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

2015

238,699
42,503

10,904

292,106

43,286

43,286

335,392

20,032
22,652
26,095

91,035
159,814

159,814

43,286
20,898
111,394

175,578

s

2014

157,530
30,035
2,154

189,719

62,631

62,631

252,350

12,685
22,486
14,625

110,341
160,137

160,137

62,631

29,582

92,213

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

8



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position - Proprietary Fund

For the Years Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

Revenues:

Operating:
Technology business incubator
Boca park land
Grants, contributions and other
Deerfield park land

Total operating income
Expenses:
Operating:

Rent
Occupancy overhead

General and administrative:
Payroll costs and employee benefits

Professional fees
Other

Program:
Incubator
Overhead
Grants
Total expenses
Operating income (loss)
Non-operating income - interest and dividends
Changes in net position

Net Position, beginning of year, as restated (Note 14)

Net Position, end of year

2015

342,782
259,300
246,956

222,379

1,071,417

375,019
30,832

405,851

221,755
39,248
34,733

295,736

221,362
61,664
4,102

287,128
988,715

82,702

663

83,365

92,213

175,578

2014

358,411
265,710
63,368

220,330

907,819

438,709
32,402

471,111

174,040
120,137
27,847

322,024

178,067
70,759
40,000

288,826
1,081,961

(174,142)

491

(173,651)

265,864

92,213

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

9



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Statements of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund
For the Years Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from lessees S
Other operating cash receipts
Cash paid to suppliers and service providers
Cash paid to employees
Cash paid for grants

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets
Deposit on purchase of building
Interest and dividends received

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year S

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:

Net operating income (loss) S

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Provision for depreciation

Provision for doubtful accounts

Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in rent and other tenant receivables

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other

Increase (decrease)in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses

Increase (decrease) in tenant deposits

Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities S

2015

804,157
246,956
(751,358)
(215,147)

&£ " ($102)

80,506

663
663

81,169

157,530

238,699

82,702

19,345
1,864

(14,332)

(8,750)
7,347
166
11,470

(19,306)

80,506

s

2014

863,597
63,368

(844,114)

(191,530)

(40,000)

(148,679)

(13,388)
50,000
491

37,103

(111,576)

269,106

157,530

(174,142)

19,609
22,232

(21,780)
(33)
3,957
(6,122)
(5,908)

13,508

(148,679)

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

10



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Note 1 - Organization

The Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority (the “Authority”) was created by
Ordinances No. 85-32 and 84-60 adopted September 24, 1985 and October 8, 1985 by Palm Beach
and Broward Counties, respectively, in accordance with Florida Statutes Section 159.703 for the
purposes of development, operations, management and financing of a research and development
park.

The Authority was established to promote scientific research and development in affiliation with
and related to the research and development activities of one or more institutions of higher
education for the purpose of fostering the economic development and broadening the economic
base of Palm Beach and Broward Counties.

The Authority is governed by a Board of Directors (the “Board”), which is composed of seven
members. The Boards of County Commissioners of Palm Beach County and Broward County each
appoint three (3) members who are employed in the private sector and reside in their respective
Counties. The President of the Florida Atlantic University or his/her designee is a permanent
member of the Authority’s Board of Directors. The Authority is classified by the Office of the
Comptroller of the State of Florida as an Independent Special District.

For financial reporting purposes, the Authority includes the sole fund that it controls. There are no
dependent agencies, boards, commissions, component units or other authorities which are
controlled by or dependent upon the Authority.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Authority conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) as applicable to governments in accordance with those promulgated by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The Authority’s significant accounting policies are described
below:

Basis of presentation: The Authority is engaged in a single business-type activity whose operations
are primarily supported by user fees and charges. The principal statements were prepared in
accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) codification section 2100,
which establishes standards for defining and reporting of the financial reporting entity. The
Authority maintains a proprietary fund which reports transactions related to activities similar to
those found in the private sector. As such, the Authority presents only the statements required of
enterprise funds, which include the statement of net position, statement of revenues, expenses,
and changes in net position, and statement of cash flows.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting: Basis of accounting refers to the point at which
revenues or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the basic financial
statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of the measurement
focus applied.

The Authority’s financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenue is recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents are defined as demand deposits, money

market accounts, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from
the date of acquisition.

11



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Receivables: Receivables consist of charges to customers for rent of facilities. No allowance for
doubtful accounts is considered necessary.

Prepaid expenses:  Prepaid expenses are recorded as assets when initial payment is made. Each
asset is then charged off against operations in the period benefitted.

Capital assets: Capital assets, which include leasehold improvements, computers and office
equipment, and signs, are reported in the statements of net position. The Authority capitalizes all
capital assets with a cost in excess of a $ 1,000 threshold and an estimated life greater than one
year. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated cost if actual historical cost is not
available.

Depreciation of capital assets is calculated using the straight-line method over the assets’
estimated service lives, ranging from 5 to 30 years.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Unearned revenue: Unearned revenue represents resources received before revenue has been
earned, which included rent collected in advance. Unearned revenue as of September 30, 2015 and
2014 was approximately $ 91,000 and $ 110,000, respectively.

Net position: Net position is classified in three categories. The general meaning of each is as follows:

a. Net investment in capital assets - consists of capital assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by
the outstanding balances of any debt or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those
assets.

b. Restricted - consists of net position with constraints placed on their use
either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

C. Unrestricted - all other net position that do not meet the definition of
"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets."

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications: Certain accounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified to
conform with the presentation in the current year financial statements.

Date of management review: Subsequent events have been evaluated through (DATE), which is
the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

12



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Note 3 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Authority maintains deposits with “Qualified Public Depositories” as defined in Chapter 280,
Florida Statutes. All Qualified Public Depositories must place with the Treasurer of the State of
Florida securities equal to various percentages of the average daily balance for each month of all
public deposits in excess of any applicable deposit insurance. In the event of default by a Qualified
Public Depository, the State Treasurer will pay public depositors all losses.

Under this method, all the Authority’s deposits are fully insured or collateralized at the highest
level of security as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Statement Number 40,
Deposits and Investment Disclosures.
At year end, the carrying amount of the Authority’s deposits was $ 238,699 and the bank balance
was $ 293,038.

Note 4 - Capital Assets

The following is a summary of changes in capital asset balances for the year ended September 30,
2015:

Balance at Balance at
October 1, September 30,
2014 Additions Deletions 2015
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Leasehold improvements S 67,597 S z S - S 67,597
Computers and office equipment 33,390 - - 33,390
Signs 17,173 - - 17,173
Total capital assets, being
depreciated 118,160 - - 118,160
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Leasehold improvements 33,416 12,739 - 46,155
Computers and office equipment 15,414 6,086 - 21,500
Signs 6,699 520 - 7,219
Total accumulated depreciation 55,529 19,345 - 74,874
Business-type activities
capital assets, net $ 62,631 S (19,345) S - S 43,286

Depreciation expense is charged to the following functions:

Business-type activities: S 19345

13



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Note 4 - Capital Assets (continued)

The following is a summary of changes in capital asset balances for the year ended September 30,
2014:

Balance at Balance at
October 1, September 30,
2013 Additions Deletions 2014
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Leasehold improvements S 67,597 S d S - S 67,597
Computers and office equipment 20,002 13,388 - 33,390
Signs 17,173 - - 17,173
Total capital assets, being
depreciated 104,772 13,388 - 118,160
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Leasehold improvements 20,677 12,739 - 33,416
Computers and office equipment 9,065 6,349 - 15,414
Signs 6,178 521 - 6,699
Total accumulated depreciation 35,920 19,609 - 55,529
Business-type activities
capital assets, net S 68,852 S (6,221) S - $ 62,631

Depreciation expense is charged to the following functions:

Business-type activities: $ 19,609

Note 5 - Boca Park Land Lease

Effective October 23, 1986, the Authority entered into a lease agreement with the Board of
Trustees (the “Trustees”) of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund of the State of Florida (the
“State”) to lease approximately 52 acres of land owned by the State of Florida in Palm Beach
County (the “Boca Park”). In accordance with Florida Statutes Section 159.705 (10), the land is to
be used as a research and development park. Effective April 18, 1990, the lease was amended to
extend the lease term for an additional forty-nine (49) years, with a revised termination date of
October 2085.

Effective July 18, 2001, the Authority entered into an additional lease agreement with the Trustees
to lease approximately 17 acres of additional adjacent land owned by the State, in accordance with
Section 159.705 (10), Florida Statutes, for use as a research and development park. This agreement
also has an expiration date of October 2085.

The leases require no annual lease payments throughout the ninety-nine (99) year term and
expiring in October 2085.

14



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Note 5 - Boca Park Land Lease (continued)

Use and Control of Boca Park Land: The Boca Park was created for the purpose of promoting
scientific research and development in affiliation with and related to the research and
development activities of one or more state-based, accredited, public or private institutions of
higher education; and for the purpose of financing and refinancing capital projects related to
establishment of a research and development park in affiliation with one or more institutions of
higher education, including facilities that complement or encourage the complete operation
thereof as defined by, and in the manner provided by, the Florida Industrial Development Financing
Act. The Authority is authorized to sublease the Boca Park land to third parties in accordance with
the Conceptual Plan of Development, which has been approved by the Trustees. The Authority has
full and sole control of and responsibility for the development, subleasing, management and uses
of the Boca Park land.

Upon the expiration or termination of the Lease Agreements, all improvements upon Boca Park
land shall become and be the property of the Trustees and title thereto.

Note 6 - Boca Park Land Sublease to Boca Research Park, LTD.

Effective May 1, 1991 with additional subsequent amendments, the Authority entered into a non-
cancellable sublease agreement for approximately 39 acres of Boca Park land, with Boca Research
Park Ltd.) (the “Boca Park Developer”). In addition to the sublease noted above, the Authority
entered into additional subleases with the Boca Park Developer in July 2006 and 2007 for
approximately 5 and 4 acres, respectively. All of the subleases with the Boca Park Developer are
set to expire at various times through October 2085.

Rent: Base rent for each lease term year is $0.75 per square foot of land, subject to annual
increases based on the Consumer Price Index (hereafter the “minimum rent”). However, for land
subleased to a third party by the Boca Park Developer, base rent is equal to the aggregate of (i) the
lesser of (1) 10% of the “Lessee’s Gross Rent” for such lease year or (2) minimum rent per square
foot of land subleased; plus (ii) 40% of the Lessee’s gross rent received for and during such lease
year by the Boca Park Developer in excess of S 0.75 per square foot of land subleased. In addition
to the base rent, the Boca Park Developer is responsible for all taxes, costs, fees, and other charges
associated with the land and any improvements thereon.

On the last day of the term or any earlier termination of these subleases, the Boca Park Developer
will surrender title to all buildings, equipment and other improvements developed, constructed or
installed on the Boca Park land to the Authority. For and during the term of these subleases, all
buildings, equipment and other improvements will constitute separate property of the Boca Park
Developer.

The following is an estimated schedule of approximate minimum future rental income with the
Boca Park Developer, based on the rates as of September 30, 2015:

Year Ending
September 30, Amount
2016 S 295,000
2017 295,000
2018 295,000
2019 295,000
2020 295,000
2021-2086 18,479,000

$ 19,954,000

15



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Note 6 - Boca Park Land Sublease to Boca Research Park, LTD. (continued)

In addition, the Authority subleases approximately 4 acres to the ARC of Palm Beach County and the
Boca Raton Airport Authority.

During the years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, rental income aggregated to approximately
$ 259,000 and $ 266,000, respectively.

Note 7 - Deerfield Park Land Lease

Effective June 4, 2003, the Authority entered into a lease agreement with the City of Deerfield
Beach (the “City”) to lease approximately 10 acres of land (the “Deerfield Park™), which is owned by
the City. On May 16, 2004, the Authority exercised the option to lease approximately 4 additional
acres of land from the City. The leases require annual lease payments of S 1, for a term of ninety-
nine (99) years, terminating in June 2102.

Use and Control of Deerfield Park Land: The Deerfield Park was created for the purpose of
promoting scientific research and development in affiliation with and related to the research and
development activities of one or more state-based, accredited, public or private institutions of
higher education; and for the purpose of financing and refinancing capital projects related to
establishment of a research and development park in affiliation with one or more institutions of
higher education, including facilities that complement or encourage the complete operation
thereof as defined by, and in the manner provided by, the Florida Industrial Development Financing
Act. The Authority is authorized to sublease the Deerfield Park land to third parties. The Authority
has full and sole control of and responsibility for the development, subleasing, management and
use of the Deerfield Park land.

Upon the expiration or termination of the lease agreement, all improvements upon the Deerfield
Park shall become and be the property of the City and title thereto.

Note 8 - Deerfield Park Land Sublease to Deerfield Research Park, Ltd.

Effective June 4, 2003, and subsequent amendments, the Authority entered into a non-cancelable
sublease agreement for a total of approximately 14 acres of Deerfield Park with Deerfield Research
Park, Ltd. (the “Deerfield Park Developer”). The sublease with the Deerfield Park Developer is set
to expire June 3, 2102.

Rent: Base rent is equal to S 0.30 per square foot of land, subject to annual increases based on the
Consumer Price Index. Development of the Deerfield Park has been divided into four different
projects, in which base rent is divided into separate sections: Phase 1, Phase 2, Phase 3 were
assigned to Deerfield Trust and Parcel 4 remained with the Deerfield Park Developer.

On the last day of the term or any earlier termination of this sublease, the Deerfield Park Developer
will surrender title to all buildings, equipment and other improvements developed, constructed or
installed on the Deerfield Park land to the Authority. For and during the term of these subleases,
all buildings, equipment and other improvements will constitute separate property of the Deerfield
Park Developer.

The following is an estimated schedule of approximate minimum future rental income with the
Deerfield Park Developer, based on the rates as of September 30, 2015:

16



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Note 8 - Deerfield Park Land Sublease to Deerfield Research Park, Ltd. (continued)

Year Ending
September 30, Amount

2016 S 223,000
2017 223,000
2018 223,000
2019 223,000
2020 223,000

2021-2102 18,060,000

$ 19,175,000

During the years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, rental income aggregated approximately
$ 222,000 and $ 220,000, respectively.

Note 9 - Incubator Leases

In previous years, the Authority, as lessee, entered into lease agreements for space in the
Technology Business Incubator (the “Incubator”) with Boca R&D Project 7, LLC. (whose rights were
assumed by HDG Mansur in 2008), which subleases space from the Boca Park Developer within the
Boca Park. Since the initial agreement in 2000, the Authority has amended the agreement,
increasing their space from 10,805 to 13,852 square feet, and extended the term of the lease until
January 31, 2020. During the 2015 and 2014 fiscal years, the Authority continued to lease the
space noted above, at which the lease agreements specify that the base rent is S 14 per square foot
and is to be adjusted annually by the inflation rate up to 4%. In addition to the base rent, the
Authority is also responsible for its proportionate share of operating costs and common area
maintenance.

In May 2013, the Authority entered into an additional lease agreement for space, with the
aforementioned lessor, for approximately 11,900 square feet. This lease for additional space was
set to expire January 31, 2015, with an option to renew; however, during fiscal year 2015, the
Authority deemed this additional space as unnecessary and ended the agreement. The base rent
for fiscal year 2014 and partial of 2015, was calculated at $ 14 per square foot and was adjusted
annually by the inflation rate up to 4%. In addition to the base rent, the Authority was also
responsible for its proportionate share of operating costs, as well as common area maintenance.

The following is an estimated schedule of approximate minimum future rental expense under the
Incubator leases, based on the rates as of September 30, 2015:

Year Ending
September 30, Amount
2016 S 314,000
2017 318,000
2018 322,000
2019 327,000
2020 111,000

S 1,392,000

Rent expense under the leases amounted to approximately $ 375,000 and $ 439,000 for the years
ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

17



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Note 10 - Incubator Expenses

Incubator expenses allocated as program expenses are as follows:

2015 2014

Sponsorship and events S 70,815 S -
Utilities 68,345 64,667
Marketing 35,233 42,463
Repairs and maintenance 22,984 27,584
Depreciation 19,345 19,609
Other support expenses 2,776 1,512
Provision for doubful accounts 1,864 22,232

S 221,362 S 178,067

Note 11 - Incubator Subleases

The Authority, as lessor, subleases its leased office spaces to various research and development
technology companies on a month-to-month basis. Base rent for the subleased office spaces are
dependent on the square footage of the space being leased, and is increased annually based on the
lease agreements mentioned in Note 9. In addition to the base rent, the various technology
companies are also responsible for other operating costs and common area maintenance. The
revenue from these leases and their relating additional costs for the year ended September 30,
2015 and 2014 totaled approximately S 343,000 and $ 358,000, respectively.

Note 12 - Defined Contribution Plan

The Authority participates in a multi-employer defined contribution plan (the “Plan”) - the 401(a)
Plan under the Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund. This plan is available to all employees and
provides for voluntary employee contributions as well as matching employer contribution of up to
4% of employee salary. The Authority made contributions to the Plan of approximately $ 8,600 and
$ 5,800 for the year ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, which are included in
employee benefit costs. The Plan is administered by the Florida League of Cities.

Note 13 - Related Party Transactions

In 1998, the Florida Atlantic University Research Park Maintenance Association, Inc. (“the
Association”) was incorporated. The Association’s Articles of Incorporation provides that the
Authority appoint two (2) of its seven (7) Board of Directors to manage the affairs of the
Association. The by-laws of the Association give the Association powers to make application to the
Authority for funds to support, and to defray expenses and costs of the research and development
functions of the Association. Since the incorporation, no such application has been made.

18



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Note 14 - Prior Period Adjustment

For the years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, the Authority increased/(decreased) beginning
net position on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position in the amount of
$17,532 and (S 26,657), respectively. This is the result of corrections to liabilities related to rent
and other expenses.

Note 15 — Risk Management

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The Authority obtains its general
liability, property and worker’s compensation insurance coverage through the Florida Municipal
Investment Trust, a program sponsored and administered by the Florida League of Cities. The
Florida Municipal Investment Trust (FMIT) is a risk pool that assumes risk of loss for all participating
members. The members are subject to additional premiums in the event the risk pool requires
additional funding to satisfy all claims. There have been no settlements or claims in the last three
years.

19



OTHER REPORTS OF
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Boca Raton, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities of the Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority (the “Authority”) as of and for
the year ended September 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements which
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon
dated (DATE).

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

20



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

KEEFE McCULLOUGH

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
(DATE)

21



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO AUTHORITY MANAGEMENT

To the Board of Directors
Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Boca Raton, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority (the
“Authority”), Florida, as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, and have issued our
report thereon dated (DATE).

Auditor’s Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor
General.

Other Reports

We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
Compliance on and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards; and Independent Accountant’s Report on an
examination conducted in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, Section 601, regarding
compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures
in those reports, which are dated (DATE), should be considered in conjunction with this management
letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding
annual financial audit report. There were no findings and recommendations made in the preceding
annual financial audit report.

Official Title and Legal Authority

Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in
this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The Florida Atlantic
Research and Development Authority was established in 1985 under the provisions of Chapter 159 of
the laws of the State of Florida. The Authority does not have any component units.

22



Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority

Financial Condition

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply appropriate
procedures and report the results of our determination as the whether or not the Authority has met
one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statues, and identification of the
specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the Authority did not meet
any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.c. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial
condition assessment procedures. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the Authority’s
financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made
by management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Annual Financial Report

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply appropriate
procedures and report the results of our determination as to whether the annual financial report for
the Authority for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, filed with the Florida Department of
Financial Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the annual
financial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015. In connection with our audit, we
determined that these two reports were in agreement.

Other Matters

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management letter
any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not
have any such recommendations.

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address noncompliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants
the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not have any
such findings.

Purpose of this Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, the Board of Commissioners of Palm Beach and

Broward Counties, Florida, and applicable management, and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

KEEFE McCULLOUGH

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
(DATE)

23



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES

To the Board of Directors
Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority
Boca Raton, Florida

We have examined Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority’s (the “Authority”),
compliance with the requirements of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, Local Government Investment
Policies, during the year ended September 30, 2015. Management is responsible for the Authority’s
compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Authority’s
compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Authority’s
compliance with specified requirements.

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements
for the year ended September 30, 2015.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee,
members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General,
Federal and other granting agencies, the Board of Commissioners of Palm Beach and Broward
Counties, Florida, and applicable management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

KEEFE McCULLOUGH

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
(DATE)

24



RESEARCH PARK

o~ AT FLORIDA ATLANTIC
Y 4
s UNIVERSITY?
- Florida Atlantic Research and
Development Authority Members
Bruce C. Rosetto, Esq. — chair
Robert Parks Ed.D. — vice-chair
Michael I. Daszkal, CPA —treasurer
Bob Swindell
MEMORANDUM Lonnie H. Maier, MBA
Daniel Flynn, Ph.D.
TO: FARDA Members Susan Whelchel
\ President & CEO
a Andrew Duffell, MBA
FROM: Andrew Duffell, MBA AN
DATE: December 1, 2015 o
SUBJECT: Annual performance evaluation EXCELLENCE i\fjﬂg

AWARDS

[ .

At the December 10, 2014 meeting of the Authority, goals I I

were approved for the 2015 year. I have listed each goal
with the result that has been achieved in italics to inform
your evaluation of my performance this year.

1. Increase revenue sources $100,000 over 2014-15
budget projections
= Develop sponsorship opportunities for
corporations
* Find companies/foundations to match
Boca Raton’s contribution
= Seek grant opportunities.

A new grant from Boca Raton in the amount of $50,000
annually was approved and has been received.

A new grant from Palm Beach County in the amount of
$50,000 annually has been approved and will be paid

out monthly. 3651 FAU Boulevard | Suite 400

Sponsorships were developed specifically for the 30™ Boca Raton [ FL | 33431

Anniversary celebration and approximately $100,000 (561) 416-6092

revenue was brought in.
www.Research-Park.org



Page 2 of 3

FARDA Members

Annual performance evaluation
December 1, 2015

2. Determine feasibility of a fund raising campaign for
TBI/Research Park.

Inquiries have been made and proposals received to
conduct a fund raising campaign and would involve an
upfront investment of $25,000 that is not critical right
now. This item should come back for discussion.

3. Successfully conclude a transaction with ATG for
building ownership

ATG was not in a position to conclude the transaction
because of various business considerations. The
company values the efforts of the Research Park and
has developed greater loyalty to it.

4. Create a detailed inventory of capabilities, projects and
other opportunities for faculty/students to work with
Research Park/TBI companies.

= Visit each company

= Create a COO Council to bring the
operations leaders from all companies
together twice a year

This has been achieved and is an ongoing, evolving
project as business needs change. Opportunities to
learn about the hiring of students have been made
available, and new projects have been launched, with
more in progress.

5. Determine feasibility of a north Palm Beach County
location.

In progress. Site analysis is being conducted on 6 sites
with an aim to conclude by June 2016. A federal grant
was won, with Palm Beach County, to conduct this
study in the amount of $290,600.

3651 FAU Boulevard | Suite 400
Boca Raton | FL | 33431

(561) 416-6092

www.Research-Park.org



Page 3 of 3

FARDA Members

Annual performance evaluation
December 1, 2015

6. Collaborate with Palm Beach County.

Achieved. This is an ongoing relationship that has been
strengthened by the award of the federal grant to both
parties and the agreement to invest $50,000 annually
into FARDA'’s initiatives.

In addition to the accomplishment of these goals we also
ended the 2014-2015 year in a strong position with
$238,699 cash on hand as compared to

$157,000 at the end of FY 2013-2014. The TBI remains at
100% occupancy and the Research Park is at approximately
90% occupancy.

We have a strong budget for 2015-2016 and I am looking

forward to making next year even more successful than
this.

- END -

3651 FAU Boulevard | Suite 400
Boca Raton | FL | 33431

(561) 416-6092

www.Research-Park.org



RESEARCH PARK

AT FLORIDA ATLANTIC
UNIVERSITY®

FLORIDA ATLANTIC RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
DRAFT REVISED 2015-2016 MEETING DATES

Wednesday December 9, 2015
Wednesday January 20, 2016
Wednesday March 16, 2016
Wednesday May 18, 2016
Wednesday July 20, 2016

Wednesday September 21, 2016

The Authority reserves the right to change these dates at its discretion and to add new
dates as needed, subject to the requirements of applicable law.

All meetings at 8 AM unless otherwise noted

12
#4380874 v1



FARDA Meeting

22
#4380874 v1

10/14/2015
12/09/2015
01/20/2016
03/16/2016
05/18/2016
07/20/2016
09/21/2016

PROPOSED AGENDA SUBMITTAL SCHEDULE

Agenda published online

10/07/2015
12/02/2015
01/13/2016
03/09/2016
05/11/2016
07/13/2016
09/14/2016

Submission to staff

09/30/2015
11/25/2015
01/06/2016
03/02/2016
05/04/2016
07/06/2016
09/07/2016



RESEARCH PARK

AT FLORIDA ATLANTIC
: UNIVERSITY"

Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority

Policy No. 15-8
Title: Non-discrimination, non-harassment, non-retaliation policy
Date Adopted:
Effective Date: January 1, 2016
Expiration Date: December 31, 2020

Purpose — To adopt a new Non-Discrimination, Non-Harassment, and Non-Retaliation Policy
(the “Policy™), designated as Policy No. 15-8.

The Policy is hereby adopted, to wit:

Equal Employment Opportunity

It is the policy of the Authority to promote and assure equal opportunity employment for
all current and prospective Employees without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, handicap,
disability, marital status, genetic information, sexual orientation, pregnancy, national origin,
citizenship status, and any other legally recognized status entitled to protection under federal,
state, or local anti-discrimination laws.

Employees who have any questions concerning this policy or feel that they have not been
treated in accordance with this policy should contact the President & CEO of the Authority. If
the President & CEO of the Authority cannot provide the necessary information, the Employee
may contact the Authority Chair. The Authority prohibits retaliation against any Employee who
makes a good faith complaint under this policy. Violations of this policy will result in
appropriate disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment.

Americans With Disabilities Act

The Authority is committed to complying with all applicable provisions of the Americans
with Disabilities Act, as amended (ADA), and applicable state and local laws. It is the
Authority's policy not to discriminate against any qualified Employee or applicant with regard to
any terms or conditions of employment on the basis of such individual’s disability. Consistent

Page 1 of 3



with this policy of non-discrimination, the Authority will provide reasonable accommodations to
an individual with a disability, as defined in the ADA or applicable law, who has made the
Authority aware of his or her disability, unless doing so constitutes an undue hardship to the
Authority.

The Authority also wishes to participate in a timely, good faith, interactive process with a
disabled applicant or Employee to determine effective reasonable accommodations, if any, which
can be made in response to a request for accommodations. Requests should be made to the
President & CEO of the Authority. By working together in good faith, the Authority hopes to
implement any reasonable accommodations that are appropriate and consistent with legal
obligations. Any Employee or job applicant who has questions regarding this policy or believes
that he or she has been discriminated against based on a disability should notify President &
CEO of the Authority, or, if necessary, the Authority Chair.

Anti-Harassment/Anti-Discrimination And Retaliation Policy

The Authority believes that each of us should be able to work in an environment free of
discrimination and harassment. To this end, the Authority prohibits and will not tolerate
discrimination or harassment based on any legally protected status, including but not limited to
race, color, religion, sex, age, handicap, disability, marital status, genetic information, sexual
orientation, pregnancy, national origin, or citizenship status. Although this policy is primarily
directed to sexual harassment, it applies equally to any form of discrimination or harassment
based on any legally protected status.

Procedure For Reporting Harassment: If you believe (or have direct knowledge of
such incidents) that you are being harassed by a supervisor, co-worker, vendor, or patron, you
should promptly report the incident or incidents to the President & CEO of the Authority. If you
do not feel comfortable reporting this matter to the President & CEO, you may report the matter
to the Authority Chair.

If you report the incident(s) in writing, please place the report in a sealed envelope
marked "Personal and Confidential." The following information should be included in the
written statement: the date(s) of the incident(s), identity of the alleged harasser, identity of any
witnesses, and details about the incident(s).

The Authority Investigation: The Authority will investigate all sexual harassment
claims (or other types of unlawful harassment and discrimination) irrespective of the identity of
the alleged perpetrator.

Sanctions: If the investigation reveals evidence supporting the occurrence of an incident
of sexual harassment (or other type of unlawful harassment or discrimination), the Authority will

Page 2 of 3



take prompt remedial action. The Authority's disciplinary action will depend upon the specifics
of the case and may range from a warning to termination of employment.

If the investigation fails to disclose unlawful harassment or discrimination conclusively,
the Authority reserves the right to nonetheless take action. The Authority will not transfer the
alleged victim unless he or she consents to the transfer.

Prohibition Against Retaliation: The Authority does not condone or permit
retaliation. No one will suffer any adverse consequences as a result of bringing a complaint of
perceived unlawful harassment or discrimination to the Authority’s attention. There will be no
retaliation for either reporting the harassment/discrimination or for cooperating in the
investigation of the report. Any Employee responsible for retaliatory conduct will be subject to
discipline, up to and including discharge. If an Employee believes that he or she is being
retaliated against, the Employee is encouraged to report the retaliation by using the same
procedures discussed above for reporting harassment and discrimination.

Follow-up: Once the matter has been resolved, the Authority will continue to monitor the
Employees involved to ensure that no future incidents of harassment or discrimination occur.
The Authority is dedicated to maintaining a working environment free of discrimination and
based on professionalism. We expect that all Employees will continue to act responsibly to fulfill
the Authority's commitment to working in an environment totally free of discrimination.
Employees should not hesitate to ask questions regarding harassment or discrimination.

Open Door Policy

It is the Authority’s policy to welcome and encourage Employee ideas and suggestions.
We know from our experience that our success greatly depends upon the helpful thoughts and
suggestions of our Employees. We want our Employees to feel free to express themselves about
anything which concerns them. The Authority requires that Employee concerns be given
consideration without discrimination or recrimination

Employees are encouraged to openly discuss problems with their direct supervisors or
President & CEO of the Authority so that appropriate action can be taken to address such
problems. If the direct supervisor or President & CEO of the Authority cannot be of assistance,
the Employee is free to discuss the issue with the Authority Chair.

ADOPTED THIS DAY OF DECEMBER, 2015

Page 3 of 3



	2015-12-09 FARDA Agenda Packet
	2015-10-14AuthorityMeetingMinutes
	October 2015 Financial Statements
	Draft 2014-2015 Audited Financial Statements
	2015-12-1 Memo to FARDA re performance evaluation
	Draft revised 2015-2016 meeting dates
	Draft Policy 15-8 Non-Discrimination



